UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF WISCONSIN
MILWAUKEE DIVISION
ISRAEL BERNAL and MARCIA BERNAL, g Case No.: 18-cv-891
qu1v1dually and on Behalf of All Others Similarly ) CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
Situated, )
Plaintiffs, %
v. ) Jury Trial Demanded
)
)
)
)
)
)

CONSUMER PORTFOLIO SERVICES, INC. and
STATEWIDE RECOVERY SPECIALISTS, LLC,

Defendants.

INTRODUCTION

1. This class action seeks redress for collection practices that violate the Fair Debt
Collection Practices Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1692 et seq. (the “FDCPA”), and the Wisconsin Consumer
Protection Act, Wis. Stat., Chs. 421-427, (the “WCA”).

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

2. The court has jurisdiction to grant the relief sought by the Plaintiffs pursuant to 15
U.S.C. § 1692k and 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331, 1337, and 1367. Venue in this District is proper in that
Defendant directed its collection efforts into the District.

PARTIES

3. Plaintiffs Israel Bernal and Marcia Bernal are a married couple who reside in the
Eastern District of Wisconsin (Milwaukee County).

4. Each Plaintiff is a “consumer” as defined in the FDCPA, 15 U.S.C. § 1692a(3), in
that Defendant sought to collect from Plaintiffs a debt allegedly incurred for personal, family, or

household purposes, namely to finance the purchase of an automobile.
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5. Each Plaintiff is also a “customer” as defined in the Wisconsin Consumer Act,
Wis. Stat. § 421.301(17), in that she engaged in a consumer transaction.

6. Defendant Consumer Portfolio Services, Inc. (“CPS”) is a foreign corporation
with its primary offices located at 3800 Howard Hughes, Suite 1400, Las Vegas, NV 89169.

7. CPS does substantial business in Wisconsin and has designated its registered
agent in Wisconsin for the service of process as C T Corporation System, 301 South Bedford
Street Suite 1, Madison, Wisconsin 53703.

8. CPS provides consumer lending services to individuals. CPS issues, takes
assignment of, and services loans to consumers to finance vehicle purchases and other consumer
credit transactions.

0. CPS is both a “merchant,” as that term is defined in Wis. Stat. § 421.301(25), and
a “lender,” as defined in Wis. Stat. § 421.301(22), because CPS regularly provides “consumer
loans” (Wis. Stat. § 421.301(12)), including automobile loans, to individual customers.

10. CPS routinely conducts debt collection activities, including repossessions of
automobiles, against Wisconsin citizens.

11.  Wis. Stat. § 427.103(3) defines debt collector as: “any person engaging, directly
or indirectly, in debt collection, and includes any person who sells, or offers to sell, forms
represented to be a collection system, device or scheme, intended or calculated to be used to
collect claims. The term does not include a printing company engaging in the printing and sale of
forms.” (emphasis added). On its face, Wis. Stat. § 427.103(3) applies to creditors collecting on

their own behalf.
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12. Wis. Stat § 427.103(2) states: “Debt collection” means any action, conduct or
practice of soliciting claims for collection or in the collection of claims owed or due or alleged to
be owed or due a merchant by a customer.”

13. The Western District of Wisconsin has noted: “Unlike the FDCPA, the Wisconsin
Consumer Act does not provide exceptions to its general definition of a debt collector.” Hartman
v. Meridian Fin. Servs., 191 F. Supp. 2d 1031, 1048 (W.D. Wis. 2002).

14. The Wisconsin Department of Financial Institutions has likewise designated
merchants and creditors as “Debt Collectors” under the WCA:

Anyone attempting to collect a debt arising from a consumer credit transaction in

Wisconsin, whether a merchant doing its own debt collecting or a third-party debt

collector, must follow Wisconsin’s debt collection law, Ch. 427, Wis. Stats. This

is an important point because many merchants collecting debt owed directly to

them mistakenly believe that they are exempt from Wisconsin’s debt collection

law because they are not included within the definition of “debt collector” under

the federal Fair Debt Collection Practices Act.
https://www.wdfi.org/wca/business_guidance/creditors/debt_collection/.

15. CPS is a debt collector as that term is defined in Wis. Stat. § 427.103.

16.  Defendant Statewide Recovery Specialists, LLC (“SRS”) is a domestic limited
liability company with its primary offices located at 1810 Cofrin Drive, Green Bay, WI 54302.

17. SRS is engaged in the business of a collection agency, using the instrumentality of
interstate commerce for principal purpose of the business, which is the enforcement of security
interests.

18. SRS is engaged in the business of collecting debts owed to others and incurred for

personal, family, or household purposes.

19. SRS is a debt collector as defined in 15 U.S.C. § 1692a and Wis. Stat. § 427.103.
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FACTS
20. At some point prior to October 13, 2017, Plaintiffs financed the purchase of an

automobile with CPS. The automobile was a 2004 Kia Sorento (“Kia Sorento’).

21.  The note obtained to finance the purchase of the Kia Sorento was secured by the
automobile.
22. The loan was obtained for personal, family, or household purposes, namely, to

finance Plaintiff’s personal vehicle.

23. The loan agreement was a “consumer credit transaction,” as that term is defined in
the WCA, Wis. Stat. § 421.301(10).

24. At some point prior to October 13, 2017, Plaintiffs defaulted on the loan
agreement.

25. On or about October 13, 2017, CPS mailed Plaintiffs a Billing Notice to Plaintiffs.
A copy of the Billing Notice is attached to this Complaint as Exhibit A.

26. Exhibit A indicates that the “Principal balance” of the loan is $9,433.50, the
“Regularly Monthly Payment” is $293.73, and the “Amount Past Due” is $631.19.

27. On or about November 14, 2017, CPS mailed Plaintiffs another Billing Notice to
Plaintiffs. A copy of the Billing Notice is attached to this Complaint as Exhibit B.

28. Exhibit B indicates that the “Principal balance” of the loan is $9,433.50, the
“Regularly Monthly Payment” is $293.73, and the “Amount Past Due” is $924.92.

29.  After the receipt if Exhibit B, Plaintiffs received no further documents from CPS
or any other party regarding the automobile loan at issue in this action.

30. On or about June 7, 2018, CPS contracted with SRS to repossess the Kia Sorento.
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31. In the middle of the night between June 6, 2018 and June 7, 2018, SRS
repossessed the Kia Sorento from the street near Plaintiffs’ residence where it was parked.

32.  Upon discovering the Kia Sorento had been repossessed, Plaintiffs called CPS.
CPS confirmed that it had repossessed the automobile and is holding the automobile at an
unknown location pending resale.

33. The repossession of the Kia Sorento violated the FDCPA as well as the WCA.

34. The FDCPA prohibits: “Taking or threatening to take any nonjudicial action to
effect dispossession or disablement of property if— (A) there is no present right to possession of
the property claimed as collateral through an enforceable security interest; [...] or (C) the
property is exempt by law from such dispossession or disablement.” 15 U.S.C. 1692f(6).

35. At the time CPS and SRS repossessed Plaintiff’s Kia Sorento, Wisconsin law
expressly prohibited the repossession.

36.  Wisconsin law generally prohibits creditors from engaging in self-help
repossession without the creditor following a specific, multi-step statutory notice procedure or
first obtaining a judgment of replevin.

37. Once the creditor believes that the customer is in default under the terms of the
vehicle purchase contract, the creditor must provide the customer with a Notice of the customer’s
right to cure the default. Wis. Stat. § 425.104.

425.104 Notice of customer’s right to cure default.

(1) A merchant who believes that a customer is in default may give the

customer written notice of the alleged default and, if applicable, of the customer’s

right to cure any such default (s. 425.105).

(2) Any notice given under this section shall contain . . . a statement of the

nature of the alleged default and a clear statement of the total payment, including
an itemization of any delinquency charges, or other performance necessary to cure
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the alleged default, [and] the exact date by which the amount must be paid or
performance tendered . . . .

38.

The WCA specifically prohibits a merchant from accelerating the balance of a

consumer credit transaction or seeking to recover collateral until after the customer’s right to

cure the default has expired. Wis. Stat. § 425.105 states:

425.105 Cure of default.

(1) A merchant may not accelerate the maturity of a consumer credit
transaction, commence any action except as provided in s. 425.205(6) or demand
or take possession of collateral or goods subject to a consumer lease other than by
accepting a voluntary surrender thereof (s. 425.204), unless the merchant believes
the customer to be in default (s. 425.103), and then only upon the expiration of 15
days after a notice is given pursuant to s. 425.104 if the customer has the right to
cure under this section.

(2) Except as provided in subs. (3) and (3m), for 15 days after such notice is
given, a customer may cure a default under a consumer credit transaction by
tendering the amount of all unpaid installments due at the time of the tender,
without acceleration, plus any unpaid delinquency or deferral charges, and by
tendering performance necessary to cure any default other than nonpayment of
amounts due. The act of curing a default restores to the customer the customer’s
rights under the agreement as though no default had occurred.

3) A right to cure shall not exist if the following occurred twice during the
preceding 12 months

(a) The customer was in default on the same transaction or open-end credit
plan;

(b) The creditor gave the customer notice of the right to cure such
previous default in accordance with s. 425.104; and

(c) The customer cured the previous default.

39.

If a merchant intends to repossess collateral that serves as the security for a

consumer credit transaction, the merchant must also either obtain a judgment of replevin, obtain

a truly voluntary surrender of the collateral, be able to show that the collateral has been
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abandoned, or provide the statutory Notice of Intent to Repossess Collateral described in Wis.
Stat. § 425.206(1g):
425.206 Nonjudicial enforcement limited.
(1) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, no merchant may take
possession of collateral or goods subject to a consumer lease in this state except
when any of the following apply:
(a) The customer has surrendered the collateral or leased goods.
(b) Judgment for the merchant has been entered in a proceeding for
recovery of collateral or leased goods under s. 425.205, or for possession

of the collateral or leased goods under s. 425.203 (2).

(¢) The merchant has taken possession of collateral or leased goods
pursuant to s. 425.207 (2).

(d) For motor vehicle collateral or goods subject to a motor vehicle
consumer lease, the customer has not made a demand as specified in s.
425.205 (1g) (a) 3. and, no sooner than 15 days after the merchant gives
the notice specified in s. 425.205 (1g) (a), the merchant has taken
possession of the collateral or goods in accordance with sub. (2).

(3) A violation of this section is subject to s. 425.305.

40. At all times relevant to this action, Plaintiffs have refused, and continue to refuse,
to voluntarily surrender the Kia Sorento.

41. The statute governing voluntary surrender of collateral, Wis. Stat. § 425.204(3),
states that a surrender of collateral is not “voluntary” when it is pursuant to any demand, other
than a specific statutory notice. See Wis. Stat. § 425.204.

42.  CPS never filed a replevin action against Plaintiffs. A search of CCAP reflects
that no replevin action was filed against either Plaintiff or both Plaintiffs in Milwaukee County.

43.  Plaintiffs have resided at the same address in Milwaukee County at all times

relevant to this action.
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44.  If CPS filed a replevin action against Plaintiff in any other Wisconsin county or in
any other state, such judgment would be void pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 421.401(2)(b). Kett v.
Community Credit Plan, Inc., 228 Wis. 2d 1, 14, 596 N.W.2d 786, 792 (1999) (“The legislature’s
use of the words ‘for lack of jurisdiction’ makes clear that a default replevin judgment entered by
a circuit court in the face of improper venue is invalid for purposes of Wis. Stat. § 425.206(1)(b)
when entered.”)

45.  Further, there is no evidence that a replevin judgment was obtained in any other
county prior to the repossession, as Plaintiff was never served with such action and no such
judgment was docketed in Milwaukee County prior to the repossession. CCAP also does not
indicate that any replevin action was ever brought against Plaintiffs or either Plaintiff in any
Wisconsin county.

46.  No reasonable person could believe that the Kia Sorento was “abandoned
property” within the meaning of Wis. Stat. § 425.207(2). Plaintiffs were regularly using the
vehicle, which was registered with the State of Wisconsin Department of Transportation and
insured.

47. CPS did not provide Plaintiff with the statutorily required notice of right to take

possession, required by Wis. Stat. § 425.205(1g), which reads:

(1g)
(a) A merchant may not take possession of motor vehicle collateral or
goods subject to a motor vehicle consumer lease under s. 425.206 (1) (d),
unless the merchant gives, by mail, the customer a notice containing all of
the following information:

1. The name, address, and telephone number of the merchant, a
brief identification of the consumer credit transaction, and a brief

description of the collateral or goods.

2. A statement that, as a result of the customer’s default on the
consumer credit transaction, the merchant may have the right to
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take possession of the collateral or goods without further notice or
court proceeding.

3. A statement that if the customer is not in default or objects to the
merchant’s right to take possession of the collateral or goods, the
customer may, no later than 15 days after the merchant has given
the notice, demand that the merchant proceed in court by notifying
the merchant in writing.

4. A statement that if the merchant proceeds in court, the customer
may be required to pay court costs and attorney fees.

(b) The information required under par. (a) may be combined with any
other notice, except that if the customer has a right to cure under s.
425.105, the information required under par. (a) shall be combined with
the notice of right to cure under s. 425.104.

(c) A merchant is presumed to have given notice under par. (a) if the
merchant sent the notice by certified or registered mail. A merchant who
fails to give notice under par. (a) by certified or registered mail is subject
to the penalties specified in s. 425.302 (1), but such failure does not
constitute a failure to comply with s. 425.206 (1) (d).

48. Plaintiffs were aware of the notice requirement described above prior to the
repossession.
49.  Plaintiffs were actively checking the mail every day for the notice or a

notification from the post office that it was holding a certified or registered mail letter for
Plaintiff. No notice ever arrived by regular or certified or registered mail.

50.  Plaintiffs have been litigants in other matters and are aware of the need to save
and preserve all documents that may be related to litigation or potential litigation. If a notice had
arrived from Defendants, Plaintiffs would have preserved it and turned it over to their counsel.
Plaintiffs did not dispose of any Notice of Right to Cure of Notice of Intent to Repossess

Collateral because they never received any such notices.
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51. When a creditor fails to provide the §425.205(1g) notice, fails to obtain a truly
voluntary surrender, cannot reasonably believe that the collateral is abandoned and fails to obtain
a valid replevin judgment, self-help repossession violates the WCA. Wis. Stat. § 425.206.

52.  lllegal self-help repossessions of collateral subject to Consumer Credit
Transactions in Wisconsin render the transaction void. Wis. Stat. § 425.206(3) (“A violation of
this section is subject to s. 425.305.”).

53. Wis. Stat. § 425.305 states:

425.305 Transactions which are void.

(1) In a transaction to which this section applies, the customer shall be entitled

to retain the goods, services or money received pursuant to the transaction

without obligation to pay any amount.

(2) In addition, the customer shall be entitled to recover any sums paid to the
merchant pursuant to the transaction.

54. Plaintiff is also entitled to recover his reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs. Wis.
Stat. § 425.308.

55. Moreover, Chapter 427 of the Wisconsin Statutes, part of the Wisconsin
Consumer Act, regulates debt collectors and debt collection activities. The statute reads, in
relevant part:

427.104 Prohibited Practices.

(1) In attempting to collect an alleged debt arising from a consumer credit

transaction or other consumer transaction, ... where there is an agreement to defer

payment, a debt collector may not

(j) Claim, or attempt or threaten to enforce a right with knowledge or
reason to know that the right does not exist.

COUNT I - FDCPA
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56.  Plaintiffs incorporate by reference as if fully set forth herein the allegations
contained in the preceding paragraphs of this Complaint.

57.  Count I is brought against Defendant SRS.

58. SRS repossessed Plaintiffs’ automobile in order to enforce the security interest
CPS had in such automobile, when Wisconsin law prohibited SRS from repossessing Plaintiff’s
automobile.

59. At the time SRS repossessed the Kia Sorento, Defendants had not provided
Plaintiffs with the mandatory notice of right to cure default or mandatory notice of intent to
repossess collateral, as Wis. Stat. §§ 425.104 and 425.105 require.

60. Defendant SRS violated 15 U.S.C. § 16921(6).

COUNT II - WCA

61.  Plaintiffs incorporate by reference as if fully set forth herein the allegations
contained in the preceding paragraphs of this Complaint.

62. Count II is brought against Defendant CPS.

63. CPS repossessed Plaintiffs’ automobile in violation of the WCA.

64. CPS did not provide Plaintiffs with the statutorily required notice of right to cure
default, required by Wis. Stat. §§ 425.104 and 425.105, before accelerating the loan balance and
repossessing the automobile.

65. CPS did not obtain judgment of replevin, or even file a replevin action, prior to
repossessing the Kia Sorento.

66. CPS did not provide Plaintiffs with the required Notice of Intent to Repossess

Collateral prior to repossessing the Kia Sorento. Wis. Stat. § 425.205(1g).
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67.  Plaintiffs did not voluntarily surrender the Kia Sorento. At no time did Plaintiffs
communicate a willingness to voluntarily surrender the Kia Sorento to either defendant or to any
agent or employee of either defendant or to any other person.

68.  Plaintiffs did not abandon the Kia Sorento.

69. CPS failed to send Plaintiff a Notice of Intent to Repossess Collateral applicable
to the alleged default.

70.  Because CPS failed to provide Plaintiff with the required Notice of Right to Cure
the alleged default, CPS was barred from accelerating Plaintiffs’ loan or “demand[ing] or
tak[ing] possession of collateral or goods subject to a consumer lease” before such notice was
provided.

71.  Because CPS failed to provide Plaintiff with the required Notice of Intent to
Repossess Collateral, CPS was barred from “self-help” repossessing the Plaintiffs’ automobile.

72.  Instead of providing Plaintiffs with a proper Notice of Right to Cure, and instead
of either providing a Notice of Intent to Repossess Collateral or obtaining a replevin judgment,
CPS engaged in self-help repossession of Plaintiffs’ automobile in violation of the WCA, Wis.
Stat. § 425.206.

73. Defendant CPS violated Wis. Stat. § 425.206.

74. The loan transaction is void. Id.; Wis. Stat. § 425.305.

75. CPS must return the Plaintiffs’ automobile or, if the automobile has been sold,
pay Plaintiffs the fair market value of the automobile. Id. CPS is also liable for the total amount
of all payments Plaintiff made to CPS in connection with the motor vehicle loan. Id.

COUNT IIT - WCA
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76.  Plaintiffs incorporate by reference as if fully set forth herein the allegations
contained in the preceding paragraphs of this Complaint.

77. Count III is brought against both Defendants.

78. By repossessing Plaintiffs’ automobile without having obtained a judgment,
provided a notice of right to cure, or otherwise affect a voluntary surrender of the vehicle,
Defendants claimed a right with knowledge to know such right did not exist.

79. Defendants violated Wis. Stat. 427.104(1)(j).

CLASS ALLEGATIONS

80. Plaintiffs bring this action on behalf of a Class, consisting of (a) all natural
persons in the State of Wisconsin, (b) who defaulted on a loan serviced by CPS, (c) where the
amount financed was less than $25,000 and the loan was secured by a vehicle purchased for
personal, family, or household purposes, and (d) who had their vehicles repossessed by CPS
without being sent an notice of right to cure / take possession, (¢) between June 12, 2016 and
June 12, 2018, inclusive.

81. The Class is so numerous that joinder is impracticable. Upon information and
belief, there are more than 50 members of the Class.

82. There are questions of law and fact common to the members of the class, which
common questions predominate over any questions that affect only individual class members.
The predominant common question is whether the Defendant complied with the FDCPA.

83.  Plaintiffs’ claims are typical of the claims of the Class members. All are based on
the same factual and legal theories.

84.  Plaintiffs will fairly and adequately represent the interests of the Class members.

Plaintiffs have retained counsel experienced in consumer credit and debt collection abuse cases.
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85. A class action is superior to other alternative methods of adjudicating this dispute.
Individual cases are not economically feasible.

JURY DEMAND

86.  Plaintiffs hereby demand a trial by jury.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs request that the Court enter judgment in favor of Plaintiffs and
the Class and against Defendant for:

(a) actual damages including but not limited to return of the Kia Sorento or the fair
market value of the Kia Sorento if return is not possible, plus all sums paid to
CPS pursuant to the loan transaction;

(b) statutory damages;

(c) punitive damages;

(d) injunctive relief, specifically, preventing the sale of the Kia Sorento and the
immediate return of the Kia Sorento to Plaintiffs;

(e) attorneys’ fees, litigation expenses and costs of suit; and

6] such other or further relief as the Court deems proper.

Dated: June 12,2018

ADEMI & O’REILLY, LLP

By:  /s/John D. Blythin
John D. Blythin (SBN 1046105)
Mark A. Eldridge (SBN 1089944)
Jesse Fruchter (SBN 1097673)
Ben J. Slatky (SBN 1106892)
3620 East Layton Avenue
Cudahy, WI 53110
(414) 482-8000
(414) 482-8001 (fax)
jblythin@ademilaw.com
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meldridge@ademilaw.com
jfruchter@ademilaw.com
bslatky@ademilaw.com
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BILLING NOTICE

CPS

Consumer Portfolio Services, Inc.
PO BOX 57071, IRVINE CA 92619-7071

CUSTOMER INFORMATION
accountNo. » o675

BORROWERS P ISRAEL BERNAL
MARCIA BERNAL
5627 ROOT RIVER DR
GREENDALE, WI 53129

COLLATERAL DESCRIPTION B 2004 KiA SORENTO

Send Regular Payments To:
Please do not send correspondence to this address

Consumer Portfolio Services, Inc.
P.O. BOX 98757
PHOENIX AZ 85038-0757

** ACCOUNT PAST DUE ***

STATEMENT DATE b 10/13/2017

NEXT PAYMENT DATE P> 8/6/2017
REGULAR MONTHLY PAYMENT » $293.73
AMOUNT PAST DUE P> $631.19
LATE / SERVICE FEES D> $8.51
TOTAL DUE ON NEXT PAYMENT DATE $933.43
PRINCIPAL BALANCE p $9,433.50

(Please Call 1-888-469-4520 for your payoff amount. Your ]
payoff amount is different than your principal balance, as the
principal balance does not include interest.

\ S

Send Payoff or Correspondence To:

Consumer Portfolio Services, Inc.
PO BOX 57071
IRVINE CA 92619-7071

Make Check Payable To: CPS AUTO REC TRUST 2013 - B

A fee of up to $15.00 will be assessed on all Returned Checks.

Nisit us online at www.consumerportfolio.com to:
> Make a payment by check, debit, or credit card [addt'l fee may apply]
> See prior statements, your payment history, and get your payoff
» Change your mailing address
» Get answers to questions via Live Chat or FAQ's
Other contact options:
> Call us at 1-888-469-4520
\ > Text us with questions/comments at 66123

THIS LETTER IS AN ATTEMPT TO COLLECT A DEBT.
ANY INFORMATION OBTAINED WILL BE USED FOR THAT PURPOSE.
Credit Reporting Disputes: If you believe we reported incorrect or
incomplete information about you, write us at:

Consumer Portfolio Services, Inc.
Attn: Credit Report Response Team
P.O. Box 57071

Irvine, CA 92619-7071

Please tell us why you believe it is incorrect or incomplete and
provide any evidence you may have.

_

Please see hack for additional disclosures.

For Proper Credit Please Return this Coupon in the Enclosed Envelope

PAYMENT COUPON

CPS

Consumer Portfolio Services, Inc.
PO BOX 57071, IRVINE CA 92619-7071

LR

50000168209414

wxrxxrkrekMIYED AADC 900

ISRAEL BERNAL
MARCIA BERNAL
5627 ROOT RIVER DR
GREENDALE WI 53129

001473

ACCOUNT NO. » 0013660675
REGULAR MONTHLY PAYMENT P> $293.73
A fee of up to $15.00 AMOUNT PAST DUE P> $631.19
will be assessed on all

Returned Checks. LATE / SERVICE FEES > $8.51
TOTAL DUE ON NEXT PAYMENT DATE »> $933.43

PLEASE MAKE CHECK PAYMENT TO:

CPS AUTO REC TRUST 2013 -B

Consumer Portfolio Services, Inc.
P.0. BOX 98757
PHOENIX AZ 85038-0757

S < It 10 -1



BANKRUPTCY:

in the event a party on the contract files for bankrupicy
protection please send your case notification {c Asset
Recover Dept., Attn: Bankruptcy, P.O. Box 57071, Irvine,
CA92619-T071 or call 800-342-9248.

LATE CHARGES:

You can avoid late charges by paying the Next Payment
Amount as indicated on this Billing Statement on or before the
Next Payment Due Date. Please refer to vour retall instaliment
sales contract for details regarding the assessmeant of late
charges on your account.

ive

To ensure that we receive your payment on time, please use
the enclosed envelope and the sttached payment coupon,
send the payment to the address on the payment coupon and
allow 7 - 10 days for mail delivery. There may be a delay of up
to 5 days in posting payments if the payment is not received at
the location identified on the payment coupon.

WOTICE TO CONSUMER ABOUT NEGATIVE CREDIT
REPORTING:

Federal requires us fo advise you that we may report
information about your accouni {0 the credit bureaus. Late
payments, missed payments, or other defaults on your
account may be reflected in vour credit report.

law

As required by California law, you are hereby notifle
negative credit report reflecting on your credit repor
may be submitted to a credit reporting agency if you fas

the ferms on your credit obligation.

ort

“""”"“O“

ATTEMPT TO QGLLECT A DEBT:
This communication is an attempt by CPS fo collect
snd any information received in response

&

communication will be used for that purpose

a
fo

Dedicated Complaint Line
8:00 AM EST - 800 PM EST
Seven days s weel

1-888-469-4522

Chonge of Address

Addiess

LISE OF YOUR CREDIT REPORT:

You agree that we may request and utilize your credit report(s)
at any time during the term of your contract, for the purpose of
reviewing, updat ng, renewing or extending credit, taking
collection action or for other legilimate business purposes
associated with your account, eferen ed on the front side of
this statement.

MISCELLANEQUS CHARGES:

Miscellanecus charges may consisi of unpaid fees, penallies,
and expenses incurred by us on your account. These fees an{i
expenses include, but are not limited to taxes, tuwmgi repair
hills, storage bills, fines and atlo

ey fees. Please refer to }c“
retall installment sales contract for details and repaymer
obligations.

CONDITIONAL PAYMENTS:

Any res:r.o;ve Fanquage on a payment we accept will have no
effect on us without our express prior written approval.
ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES:

When you Q”O\f ide a check as pa ent, you authorize us fo
use i r*sf:'m on from your check to make a one-time elecironic
fund fra sf@? from ir account. In certain circumstances,
such as for technical Or processing ressons, we may process
your payment as a check fransaction.

We may report information about your Account fo credit
bureaus. Late paymenis, missed payment her defaulls

ofl

on your Account may be reflected in you

Fimis
Llmid

i

NOTICE: If you are ent
Siates Bankrupicy Code (?4 UscC.§ j
subiect matter of this lefier, the following applies to you: THI
COMMUNICATION IS bé*i'h’ AN ATTEMPT TO COLLECT,
ASSESS, OR RECOVER A CLAIM IN VIOLATION OF THE

itled fo the protections of the
§§ 362; 524} regard

N
33
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BANKRUPTCY CODE AND IS FOR INFORMATIOKAL
PURPOSES ONLY.
«‘«;meaﬁ' d Customer Service
4:00 AM - Midnight - PT
Seven days 2 weel
1-888-469-4520

HENEEN

Case 2:18-cv-00891 Filed 06/12/18 Page 3 of 3 Document 1-1

REV1118

(]
o
%J;



Exhibit B

Case 2:18-cv-00891 Filed 06/12/18 Page 1 of 3 Document 1-2



BILLING NOTICE

CPS

Consumer Portfolio Services, Inc.
PO BOX 57071, IRVINE CA 92619-7071

CUSTOMER INFORMATION
Accountno. > [IO675

BORROWERS P> ISRAEL BERNAL
MARCIA BERNAL
5627 ROOT RIVER DR
GREENDALE, WI 53129

COLLATERAL DESCRIPTION B 2004 KIA SORENTO

Send Regular Payments To:
Please do not send correspondence to this address

Consumer Portfolio Services, Inc.
P.O. BOX 98757
PHOENIX AZ 85038-0757

** ACCOUNT PAST DUE **

STATEMENT DATE » 11/14/2017

NEXT PAYMENT DATE »> 8/6/2017
REGULAR MONTHLY PAYMENT »> $293.73
AMOUNT PAST DUE P> $924.92
LATE / SERVICE FEES > $10.70
TOTAL DUE ON NEXT PAYMENT DATE p> $1,229.35
PRINCIPAL BALANCE » $9,433.50

(P!ease Call 1-888-469-4520 for your payoff amount. Your ]
payoff amount is different than your principal balance, as the
principal balance does not include interest.

\ 4

Send Payoff or Correspondence To:

Consumer Portfolio Services, Inc.
PO BOX 57071
IRVINE CA 92619-7071

Make Check Payable To: CPS AUTO REC TRUST 2013 -B

A fee of up to $15.00 will be assessed on all Returned Checks.

K/isit us online at www.consumerportfolio.com to:
» Make a payment by check, debit, or credit card [addt' fee may apply]
> See prior statements, your payment history, and get your payoff
» Change your mailing address
> Get answers to questions via Live Chat or FAQ's
Other contact options:
» Call us at 1-888-469-4520
\ > Text us with questions/comments at 66123

THIS LETTER IS AN ATTEMPT TO COLLECT A DEBT.
ANY INFORMATION OBTAINED WILL BE USED FOR THAT PURPOSE.
Credit Reporting Disputes: If you believe we reported incorrect or
incomplete information about you, write us at:

Consumer Portfolio Services, Inc.
Attn: Credit Report Response Team
P.O. Box 57071

Irvine, CA 92619-7071

Please tell us why you believe it is incorrect or incomplete and
provide any evidence you may have.

J

Please see back for additional disclosures.

For Proper CreditPPIeAa$'\i7|eErrr:lt-?lséoa)ﬂ1iPngeNEnclosed Envelope ACCOUNTNO. B> 0013660675
REGULAR MONTHLY PAYMENT P> $293.73
Cc PP ?l N [vfi\llfiz C:;ggg:e? gﬁoglq AMOUNT PAST DUE > $924.92
SRy, ) | ]
O PLEASE MAKE CHECK PAYMENT TO:
50000169943599
CPS AUTO REC TRUST 2013 -B

wexrrerkresx\MIXED AADC 900

ISRAEL BERNAL
MARCIA BERNAL
5627 ROOT RIVER DR
GREENDALE WI 53129

e

001447

Consumer Portfolio Services, Inc.
P.O. BOX 98757
PHOENIX AZ 85038-0757

e —— "



BANKRUPTCY:

In the event a party on the contract files for bankruptcy
protection please send your case notification to Asset
Recover Deapt., Atin: Bankruptcy, P.O. Box 57071, Irvine,
CA 92619-7071 or call 800-342-9248.

LATE CHARGES:

You can aveid late charges by paying the Next Payment
Amount as indicated on this Billing Statement on or before the
Next Payment Due Date. Please refer to your retail instaliment
sales contract for details regarding the assessment of late
charges on your account.

To ensure that we recaive your payment on time, piease use
the enclosad envelops and the aifached payment coupon,
send the payment to the address on the payment coupon and
allow 7 - 10 days for mail delivery. There may be a delay of up
to 5 days in posting payments if the payment is not received at
the location identified on the payment coupon.

NOTICE TO CONSUMER ABOUT NEGATIVE CREDIT
REPORTING:

Federal law requires us to advise you that we may report
information about your account to the credit bureaus. Late
payments, missed payments, or other defauils on your
account may be reflected in your credit report.

As required by California law, you are hereby notified that a
negative credit report reflecting on your credit report record
may be submittad to a credit reporting agency if you fail to fulfill
the terms on your credit ohiigation.

ATTEMPT TO COLLECT ADEBT:

This communication is an attempt by CPS to collect a debt,
and any information received in response to this
communication will be used for that purpose.

Dedicated Complaint Line
8:00 AM EST - 8:00 PM EST
Seven days a week
1-883-469-4522

USE OF YOUR CREDIT REPORT:

You agree that we may request and utilize your credit repori(s)
at any time during the term of your contract, for the purpose of
reviewing, updating, renewing or extending credit, taking
collection action or for other legitimate business purposes
associated with your account, referenced on the front side of
this statement.

MISCELLANEOUS CHARGES:

Miscellaneous charges may consist of unpaid fees, penaities,
and expenses incurred by us on your account. These fees and
expenses include, but are not limited to taxes, towing, repair
bills, storage bills, fines and atiorney fess. Please refer to your
retall instaliment sales contract for details and repayment
obligations.

CONDITIONAL PAYMENTS:
Any restrictive language on a payment we accept will have no
effect on us without our express prior written approval.

ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES:

When you provide a check as payment, you authorize us to
use information from your check to make a one-time electronic
fund transfer from your account. In certain circumstances,
such as for technical or processing reasons, we may process
your payment as a check transaction.

We may report information about your Account to credit
bureaus. Late payments, missed payments, or other defaults
on your Account may be reflected in your credit report.

NOTICE: If you are entitled to the protections of the United
States Bankruptcy Code (11 U.S.C. §§ 362; 524) regarding the
subject matter of this Ietter, the following applies to you: THIS
COMMUNICATION IS NOT AN ATTEMPT TO COLLECT,
ASSESS, OR RECOVER A CLAIM IN VIOLATION OF THE
BANKRUPTCY CODE AND IS FOR INFORMATIONAL
PURPOSES ONLY.

Automated Customer Servica
4:00 AM - Midnight - PT

Seven days a week
1-888-489-4520

Change of Addrass

Adidress Home Phone
AEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEE HENERREERRED

City Waork Phone ‘

EEEEEEEERREEREEREREE éciwi-"“EiiE«vHiH

Siate / Zip & e

EEEEEEEEEEEREEEEEEEERERENEEE HEEERNEENEEN
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Place an X in the appropriate Box:
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Milwaukee
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AO 440 (Rev. 06/12) Summons in a Civil Action

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

for the
Eastern District of Wisconsin

ISREAL BERNAL andMARCIA BERNAL
Plaintiff(s)

V. Civil Action No. 18-cv-891

CONSUMERPORTFOLIOSERVICES|NC. and
STATEWIDE RECOVERYSPECIALISTSLLC

Defendant(s)

N/ N N N N N N N N N N

SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION

CONSUMERPORTFOLIOSERVICES,INC.
c/oC T CORPORATIONSYSTEM
301S.BedfordSt., Suitel

Madison,WI 53703

TO: (Defendant’s name and address)

A lawsuit has been filed against you.

Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you receive it) — or 60 days if you are

the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ. P.
12(a)(2) or (3) — you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of the
Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or the plaintiff’s attorney, whose
name and address are: JohnD. Blythin

Ademi& O'Reilly, LLP

3620EastLaytonAvenue

Cudahy,WI 53110

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint.
You also must file your answer or motion with the court.

STEPHEN C. DRIES, CLERK OF COURT

Date:
Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk
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AO 440 (Rev. 06/12) Summons in a Civil Action (Page 2)

Civil Action No. 18-cv-891

PROOF OF SERVICE
(This section should not be filed with the court unless required by Fed. R. Civ. P. 4(1))

This summons and the attached complaint for (name of individual and title, if any):

were received by me on (date)

LI I personally served the summons and the attached complaint on the individual at (place):

0N (date) , or

[ T left the summons and the attached complaint at the individual’s residence or usual place of abode with (name)
, a person of suitable age and discretion who resides there,

on (date) , and mailed a copy to the individual’s last known address; or

1 1 served the summons and the attached complaint on (name of individual)

who is designated by law to accept service of process on behalf of (name of organization)

on (date) ; or
I I returned the summons unexecuted because ; or
[ Other (specify):
My fees are $ for travel and $ for services, for a total of $ 0.00

I declare under penalty of perjury that this information is true.

Date:

Server’s signature

Printed name and title

Server’s address

Additional information regarding attempted service, etc.:

I IETT ' 0210 Pose 202 Documen!




AO 440 (Rev. 06/12) Summons in a Civil Action

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

for the
Eastern District of Wisconsin

ISREAL BERNAL andMARCIA BERNAL
Plaintiff(s)

V. Civil Action No. 18-cv-891

CONSUMERPORTFOLIOSERVICES|NC. and
STATEWIDE RECOVERYSPECIALISTSLLC

Defendant(s)

N/ N N N N N N N N N N

SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION

STATEWIDERECOVERYSPECIALISTSLLC
c/oKIVEN P GERKE

1810COFRINDRIVE

GREENBAY, WI 54302

TO: (Defendant’s name and address)

A lawsuit has been filed against you.

Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you receive it) — or 60 days if you are

the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ. P.
12(a)(2) or (3) — you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of the
Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or the plaintiff’s attorney, whose
name and address are: JohnD. Blythin

Ademi& O'Reilly, LLP

3620EastLaytonAvenue

Cudahy,WI 53110

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint.
You also must file your answer or motion with the court.

STEPHEN C. DRIES, CLERK OF COURT

Date:
Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk
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AO 440 (Rev. 06/12) Summons in a Civil Action (Page 2)

Civil Action No. 18-cv-891

PROOF OF SERVICE
(This section should not be filed with the court unless required by Fed. R. Civ. P. 4(1))

This summons and the attached complaint for (name of individual and title, if any):

were received by me on (date)

LI I personally served the summons and the attached complaint on the individual at (place):

0N (date) , or

[ T left the summons and the attached complaint at the individual’s residence or usual place of abode with (name)
, a person of suitable age and discretion who resides there,

on (date) , and mailed a copy to the individual’s last known address; or

1 1 served the summons and the attached complaint on (name of individual)

who is designated by law to accept service of process on behalf of (name of organization)

on (date) ; or
I I returned the summons unexecuted because ; or
[ Other (specify):
My fees are $ for travel and $ for services, for a total of $ 0.00

I declare under penalty of perjury that this information is true.

Date:

Server’s signature

Printed name and title

Server’s address

Additional information regarding attempted service, etc.:

I ST 0210 Pose 22 Documen!
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